
 

 
 

MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH 

AGRICULTURE ADVISORY BOARD 
 

Chairman – Jon Olsen (10) Mark Stahl (03) Stephen Brown (08) 

Vice Chair – Cody Beus (04) VACANT (05) Benjamin Swimm (09) 

VACANT  (01) Steven Sawyer (06) Erik “Moe” Johnson (11) 

Dick Zobel (02) VACANT (07) VACANT (12) 

 

AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING             September 15, 2021 

LOWER LEVEL CONFERENCE ROOM                 4:30 P.M. 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER; ROLL CALL 

II. APPROVAL OF AGENDA; PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

III. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION (Limit 3 minutes) 

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. March 17, 2021 

V. ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

A. Former Title 13 Policy and Procedures 

B. Farm Development Plan Release 

VI. MEMBER COMMENTS (Limit to 3 minutes) 

VII. NEXT MEETING 

 TBD 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 



March 17, 2021 Ag Board Minutes  Page 1 of 2 

MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH 1 

AGRICULTURE ADVISORY BOARD 2 

 3 
Chairman –  Mark Stahl (03) VACANT (07) VACANT (12) 

Vice Chair – Jon Olsen (10) Cody Beus (04) Stephen Brown (08)  

VACANT  (01) VACANT (05) Benjamin Swimm (09)  

Dick Zobel (02) Steven Sawyer (06) Erik “Moe” Johnson (11)  

 4 

 5 

DRAFT MINUTES 6 
 7 

REGULAR MEETING March 17, 2021 8 

DSJ BUILDING 4:30 P.M. 9 

LOWER LEVEL CONFERENCE ROOM 10 
 11 

I. CALL TO ORDER; ROLL CALL 12 

Mr. Olsen called the meeting to order at 4:30 p.m. 13 

Members present and establishing a quorum were: Jon Olsen, Erik Johnson, Steven 14 

Sawyer, Mark Stahl, Cody Beus, Benjamin Swimm 15 

Members Absent and Excused: Stephen Brown 16 

Members Absent: Dick Zobel 17 

Staff present:  Tracy McDaniel, Asset Manager 18 

  Jill Irsik, Dept. Admin Specialist 19 

 20 

II. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN AND VICE-CHAIR 21 

MOTION: Mr. Olsen nominated Mr. Sawyer for Chairperson.  Mr. Stahl 2nd.  Mr. 22 

Sawyer declined the nomination. 23 

MOTION: Mr. Beus nominated Mr. Olsen for Chairperson.  Mr. Sawyer 2nd.  Mr. Olsen 24 

accepted the nomination.  No other members were nominated.  All in favor. 25 

MOTION: Mr. Olsen nominated Mr. Beus for Vice-Chairperson.  Mr. Sawyer 2nd.  Mr. 26 

Beus accepted the nomination.  No other members were nominated.  All in favor. 27 

 28 

III. APPROVAL OF AGENDA; PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   29 

MOTION: Mr. Olsen moved, Mr. Sawyer 2nd.   30 

Remove item B from Items of Business.  Make Item C, Item B.  All in favor.  31 

Agenda approved as amended. 32 

 33 

IV. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION (Limit to 3 minutes) 34 

None 35 

 36 

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 37 

A. October 21, 2020 38 

MOTION: Mr. Sawyer moved, Mr. Stahl 2nd.  Minutes approved.  On Line 34, 39 

strike the 2nd Mr.  All in favor.  Minutes approved as amended.  40 

 41 

 42 

 43 

 44 



March 17, 2021 Ag Board Minutes  Page 2 of 2 

VI. ITEMS OF BUSINESS 45 

A. Application to Amend Farm Conservation Plan (MSB00471) 46 

Ms. McDaniel spoke to the request to amend the current farm conservation plan  47 

MOTION: Mr. Johnson moved, Mr. Sawyer 2nd.  All in favor. 48 

 49 

B. Tracy McDaniel – Staff Report 50 

 Ms. McDaniel gave the board an update on the board vacancies, there are currently 51 

four vacancies on the Agriculture Advisory Board. 52 

 Reminded board of the Open-Meetings Act and issuing public comment as a 53 

member of the board procedure. 54 

 Colaska public notice was sent to the Board, and staff will be requiring a plan from 55 

Colaska before going forward to the board or Assembly with any action. 56 

 Biosolids report – in October 2020, the board had asked for an update.  Ms. 57 

McDaniel talked with the Planning Department, and they said there was no activity 58 

to report.   59 

 60 

VII. MEMBER COMMENTS (limit to 3 minutes) 61 

 Mr. Beus – Glad to be on the board, looking to learn, and will reach out to see if 62 

he can get some more members to join to board. 63 

 Mr. Sawyer – had a question regarding section line easements on Ag parcels, 64 

which would reduce the Ag parcel in size below the 40 acres required.  Ms. 65 

McDaniel answered his question. 66 

 Mr. Stahl – Had some concerns regarding easements on his property as well.  67 

Stated that is was good to see everyone again. 68 

 Mr. Olsen – welcomed the new members, appreciate them serving on the board 69 

 Mr. Swimm- thanked the board for the welcome.  Is glad to be able to catch up on 70 

the issues, and is looking forward to participating in future meetings. 71 

 72 

VIII. NEXT MEETING 73 

A. TBD 74 

 75 

IX. ADJOURNMENT 76 

Mr. Olsen adjourned the meeting at 5:23 p.m. 77 

 78 

 79 

 80 

              81 

        82 

ATTEST: 83 

 84 

 85 

       86 

Jill Irsik 87 

Department Administrative Specialist 88 

 89 



December 11, 2019, updated September 2, 2021 – AAB Memo Page 1 of 3  
Re:  Former Title 13 Policy and Procedures (DRAFT) 

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 
 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Agriculture Advisory Board Members 
 
THROUGH: Eric Phillips, Community Development Director  
 
FROM:  Tracy K. McDaniel, Asset Manager   
 
DATE:  September 2, 2021 for the September 15, 2021 meeting 
 
RE:  Staff Report updated from the December 11, 2019 meeting 
  Draft Former Title 13 Policy and Procedure Manual 

 

The following paper is updated from the December 11, 2019, meeting.  Since there are new 

members on the board, I thought it would be worth revisiting the draft Policy and Procedure 

Manual for the former Title 13 agricultural rights properties. 

 

I spent much of November (2019) reviewing files and researching past legislation for Borough 

agricultural sales.  I was able to get through all of the 1977, 1981, and a start on the 1982 ag sale 

files.  The time spent was extremely valuable.  A draft policy and procedures was developed from 

past practice, legislation, covenants, conditions and restriction.  These policies are to help staff 

and the board understand the unwritten, past practices on how to proceed with an owners 

request for various land disposition for a farm unit or sub-farm unit.  It is not intended to further 

restrict an owner of agricultural rights only property.   

 

The 1977 and 1981 agricultural sale programs are similar in as much as the conditions and 

restrictions are the same and recorded with the deed, not as a separate document.  The 

conditions and restriction in both sales contained paragraph 4, regarding the alienation of 

property, which specifically states, “The agricultural interest, the sole interest herein conveyed, 

may not be sold, leased, or conveyed, in whole or in part, without first obtaining written approval 

from the Matanuska-Susitna Borough.” 

 

The one difference between these two sales is the Borough performed the 1977 sale for 13 farm 

units and the Alaska Department of Natural Resource performed the 1981 sale on behalf of the 



December 11, 2019, updated September 2, 2021 – AAB Memo Page 2 of 3  
Re:  Former Title 13 Policy and Procedures (DRAFT) 

Borough for 2 properties located in the Point MacKenzie Agricultural District, which years later 

became an issue with one of the parcels due to an Agricultural Revolving Loan Fund foreclosure.   

 

The 1982 and 1983 agricultural sale programs are the same covenants, conditions, and 

restrictions and recorded as a separate document.  These two programs were a lease with the 

option to purchase.  The deeds nor the covenants, conditions, or restrictions require “written 

approval” from the borough to convey an owner’s interest as the 1977 and 1981 agricultural sales 

require.  There were 20 parcels in the 1982 land sale with 5 leases terminated and 14 parcels in 

the 1983 land sale and 8 leases terminated.  My goal is to continue review the 1982 and 1983 

sale files to determine what sold, did not sell, and subsequent subdivisions of the farm units and 

homesites as time allows. 

 

Three pieces of past legislation (attached) that affect the agricultural land sale programs were 

adopted by the Assembly to allow more flexibility in developing Borough agricultural lands and 

are as follows: 

 

MSB Ordinance Serial No. 86-78   

At the February 5, 1986, the Agricultural and Forestry Advisory Board meeting minutes document 

the board discussed a “request from the Assembly that the Ag and Forestry Advisory Board help 

review the Borough’s Ag program.  The Assembly would like the Board to meet with Borough Ag 

Parcel owners in March to get their input on how to change and or improve the Ag program.”  At 

the March 5, 1986, board meeting, 12 agricultural owners testified and gave recommendations 

to the board.  On September 16, 1986, MSB Ordinance Serial No. 86-78 was adopted. 

 

MSB Ordinance Serial No. 93-143 

This ordinance modified Ordinance Serial No. 86-78, Section 5 of Exhibit A, to allow a onetime 

approval of the agricultural and forestry advisory board for an owner to “operate a business on 

the parcel processing or selling wood or agricultural products that come from areas other than 

the parcel.  The business may not be on Class II or III soils unless located on the homesite.” 

 

MSB Ordinance Serial No. 95-151 

This ordinance is specific to a landowner’s request to be relieved from the requirements to have 

an approved current farm use plan on file with the Borough and adopted by the Assembly on 

December 5, 1995.  Also attached with the ordinance is the action memorandum and the minutes 

from the May 3, 1995, Agricultural and Forestry Advisory Board meeting.  The board 

recommended to the Assembly that when a landowner has completed their farm plan and paid 

its financial obligation, they would not be required to file a farm plan with the Borough.  I 

discovered draft legislation (attached as “Draft Ag Release Legislation”) that references the 



December 11, 2019, updated September 2, 2021 – AAB Memo Page 3 of 3  
Re:  Former Title 13 Policy and Procedures (DRAFT) 

release of the farm plan. I think the information in the draft document is worthy of a discussion 

on how this board foresees the management of farm development plans that are 35-40 years 

old.    

 

Respectfully, Tracy McDaniel 



TITLE 23 

LAND AND RESOURCE MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL 

 

AGRICULTURAL LAND SALES – FORMER MSB TITLE 13:   
1977, 1981, 1982, AND 1983 LAND SALES PROGRAMS 

PART 5 (DRAFT) 

 

5-11 
Land & Resource Management Policy & Procedures (PPM) DRAFT  Effective: XX/XX/20XX 
The code authority cited is specific to this policy and procedure.   
Other provisions of code may also apply.  

 

1.1 Authority: 23.10.090 (former MSB 13.30.020 & 13.30.045)  

MSB Serial Ordinance No. 86-78 and No. 93-143 (consider repealing and 

replacing with an updated ordinance) and recorded covenants, 

conditions, and restriction, as corrected or amended. 

2.1 This section applies to borough lands classified and sold as “agricultural lands” under 

former MSB Title 13 as Agricultural Rights interest and the development rights retained 

by the Borough, as to controlling “the rights to subdivide or use the surface of the land 

for residential, commercial, or industrial uses which are not a part of the farming 

enterprise conducted on the land.” 

 The purpose of these procedures is to outline the various documents and establish 

policies that affect the agricultural rights interest of a farm unit or sub-farm unit 

development rights the borough retained, and to streamline the process for the applicant. 

3.1 These procedures will be followed in general when preparing an application for the 

following: 

Sub-part 6.1: Conveyance of the farm unit or sub-farm unit for the 1977 and 1981 

Agricultural Land Sale programs.  

Sup-part 7.1: Subdivision and sale of the fee simple title of the five-acre homesite. 

Sub-part 8.1: Subdivision of the farm or sub-farm unit.  

Sub-part 9.1: Non-agricultural businesses. 

Sub-part 10.1: Homesites and outbuildings. 

Sub-part 11.1: Leasing a farm unit or sub-farm unit. 

Sub-part 12.1: Granting or dedicating easements. 

Sub-part 13.1: Farm Development Plan, schedule, and extensions. 



TITLE 23 

LAND AND RESOURCE MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL 

 

AGRICULTURAL LAND SALES – FORMER MSB TITLE 13:   
1977, 1981, 1982, AND 1983 LAND SALES PROGRAMS 

PART 5 (DRAFT) 

 

5-12 
Land & Resource Management Policy & Procedures (PPM) DRAFT  Effective: XX/XX/20XX 
The code authority cited is specific to this policy and procedure.   
Other provisions of code may also apply.  

 

Sub-part 14.1: Conveyance and subdivision by probate, trust, or civil actions.   

4.1 An applicant must be deemed a qualified applicant pursuant to MSB 23.10.090.  

5.1 Application submittal and review. 

A. The steps outlined under “Applications:  Filing & Acceptance” Part 10 of the Land 

and Resource Management Division Policy and Procedure Manual shall be 

followed. 

B. Staff will create or update a case file that contains the application and any 

pertinent enclosures or inclusions. 

C. Staff will provide a comprehensive review of the property status and check the 

land for any current uses, reservation, or prohibited uses to determine if the area 

is subject to any existing restrictions or area plans.  

D. The nature of the proposed request shall be considered for the uses consistent 

with any restrictions the borough retained in the conveyance document, under 

former MSB Title 13, MSB Assembly adopted legislation, and the conditions, 

covenants, and restrictions contained therein. 

E. Financial and/or Interdepartmental review is initiated. 

6.1 Conveyance of the farm unit or sub-farm unit for the 1977 and 1981 Agricultural Land 

Sale programs. 

A. The application submitted to the MSB shall be signed by both parties (grantor(s) 

and grantee(s)) prior to the conveyance of ownership pursuant to the authority 

retained by the borough under the Conditions and Restrictions, Section 4, 

Alienation of Property. 

B. Staff will conduct a financial review of both parties to ensure the parties named in 

the transaction are qualified applicants in accordance with MSB 23.10.090. 



TITLE 23 

LAND AND RESOURCE MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL 

 

AGRICULTURAL LAND SALES – FORMER MSB TITLE 13:   
1977, 1981, 1982, AND 1983 LAND SALES PROGRAMS 

PART 5 (DRAFT) 

 

5-13 
Land & Resource Management Policy & Procedures (PPM) DRAFT  Effective: XX/XX/20XX 
The code authority cited is specific to this policy and procedure.   
Other provisions of code may also apply.  

 

C. The applicant is required to pay for and provide staff with a preliminary 

commitment for owner’s title to determine the status of title specific to the sale 

and conveyance of the farm unit or sub-farm unit, naming both parties as the 

grantor(s) and grantee(s). 

D. After review of the original sale file and other documentation applicable to the 

farm unit or sub-farm unit, staff will prepare a Manager’s Decision with a Notice 

of Approval to Further Convey the Farm Unit and a recommendation for the 

borough manager’s consideration. 

E. Upon the borough manager’s approval of the request, staff will prepare the 

necessary documents and send to the title company with instruction to record the 

Notice of Approval to Further Convey the Farm Unit with the deed.   

F. All required fees for the conveyance of the farm unit or sub-farm unit shall be paid 

by the applicants. 

7.1 Subdivision and sale of the fee simple title for a five-acre homesite – 1977, 1981, 1982 

and 1983 Agricultural Land Sale Program. 

 A. Submit an application, fee, and proposed site plan with soils information. 

1. Staff will initiate qualifying the applicant(s) through a Financial Review and 
Interdepartmental Review process. 

2. Upon completion of qualifying the applicant(s), staff will prepare the 30-
day public notice for mailing and advertising. 

7.2 The applicant is required to pay for and provide Land and Resource Management Division 
a preliminary commitment for owner’s title insurance to determine status of title. 

7.3 The land classification of the homesite must be changed from “agricultural” to 
“residential” or “general purpose” land in order to convey the development rights the 
Borough retained under a former MSB Title 13 agricultural land classification programs 
for the subdivided homesite.  Any covenants, conditions, and restrictions related to the 
original agricultural rights sale shall be terminated for the five-acre homesite. 



TITLE 23 

LAND AND RESOURCE MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL 

 

AGRICULTURAL LAND SALES – FORMER MSB TITLE 13:   
1977, 1981, 1982, AND 1983 LAND SALES PROGRAMS 

PART 5 (DRAFT) 

 

5-14 
Land & Resource Management Policy & Procedures (PPM) DRAFT  Effective: XX/XX/20XX 
The code authority cited is specific to this policy and procedure.   
Other provisions of code may also apply.  

 

A. Classification of the five-acre homesite requires the MSB Agriculture Advisory 
Board and Planning Commission’s review and consideration. 

B. Staff will prepare legislation for adoption by the assembly that includes the 
Agriculture Advisory Board and Planning Commission’s recommendations and all 
public comments. 

7.4 The homesite must meet borough platting regulations in effect at the time the additional 
rights are conveyed by the borough. 

A. The application and fee for MSB Platting Division is a separate process under MSB 
Title 43, as amended.  It is recommended the applicant receive MSB Assembly 
approval prior to the MSB Platting Division’s process for subdivision approval. 

7.5 The buyer must pay cash at closing for the purchase price established for the additional 
rights conveyed for the homesite. 

A. The purchase price for the additional rights conveyed for the homesite shall be 
based on a fee appraisal performed by a qualified fee appraiser under instructions 
established by the Borough. The date of the appraisal shall be based on the date 
the MSB Assembly approves by ordinance the homesite purchase request.  Cost 
for the appraisal are bone by the applicant. 

B. The purchase price of the homesite shall be the estimated fair market value of the 
fee simple estate (land only) minus the estimated fair market value of the 
agricultural rights (land only) indicated by the fee appraisal.   

7.6 Upon notice from the MSB Platting Division for recording the subdivision plat, staff will 
prepare a quitclaim deed conveying its interest with no warranties for the five acre 
homesite, release the homesite from the recorded covenants, conditions, and 
restrictions, execute a Certificate of Ownership as required by the platting division, and 
provide the title company with the documents and instructions for recording the sale of 
the borough’s development rights.  

7.7 All costs to process the request, including but not limited to, those costs for survey, 
platting, encroachment permits or variances, fee appraisal, public notice, advertising and 



TITLE 23 

LAND AND RESOURCE MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL 

 

AGRICULTURAL LAND SALES – FORMER MSB TITLE 13:   
1977, 1981, 1982, AND 1983 LAND SALES PROGRAMS 

PART 5 (DRAFT) 

 

5-15 
Land & Resource Management Policy & Procedures (PPM) DRAFT  Effective: XX/XX/20XX 
The code authority cited is specific to this policy and procedure.   
Other provisions of code may also apply.  

 

mailing fees will be paid in advance by the applicant and all title report fees and 
transaction closing costs will be paid at closing by the applicant. 

7.8 Should the owner decide not to complete the subdivision and purchase of the 

development rights, or within the allotted time allowed under MSB Title 43.15.016, as 

amended, has expired, the applicant may continue to occupy the property under the title 

of that particular agricultural sale program and the borough will continue to hold the 

development rights of the property. 

7.9 Only the original farm unit’s homesite is eligible for fee simple purchase of five acres.  Any 

future homesite shall remain in agricultural rights only status with no more than two acres 

allowed for the subdivision of each farm unit or sub-farm unit.     

7.10 Designation of additional homesites requires review and recommendation of the MSB 

Agriculture Advisory Board for the borough manager’s approval. 

8.1 Subdivision of the farm unit or sub-farm unit. 

 A. Submit an application, fee, and proposed site plan with soils information. 

1. Staff will initiate qualifying the applicant(s) through a Financial Review and 
Interdepartmental Review process. 

2. Upon completion of qualifying the applicant(s), staff will prepare the 30-
day public notice for mailing and advertising. 

8.2 A farm unit may consist of more than one parcel of record.  Any division or subdivision 
through the platting process of a farm unit requires MSB Agriculture Advisory Board 
review and consideration for the borough manager’s approval.  Each parcel created must 
be 40 acres or more in size.   

8.3 Platting may not be required if the applicant requests approval to divide a legal parcel of 
record (e.g., a Government Land Office lot or an aliquot part descriptive lot) from the 
original farm unit.  Staff will review each application to determine if a subdivision under 
the MSB Title 43, as amended, is required.   



TITLE 23 

LAND AND RESOURCE MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL 

 

AGRICULTURAL LAND SALES – FORMER MSB TITLE 13:   
1977, 1981, 1982, AND 1983 LAND SALES PROGRAMS 

PART 5 (DRAFT) 

 

5-16 
Land & Resource Management Policy & Procedures (PPM) DRAFT  Effective: XX/XX/20XX 
The code authority cited is specific to this policy and procedure.   
Other provisions of code may also apply.  

 

8.4 The application and fee with the MSB Platting Division is a separate process under MSB 
Title 43.  It is recommended the applicant receive MSB Assembly approval prior to the 
MSB Platting Division’s process for subdivision approval. 

8.5 The applicant is required to provide Land and Resource Management Division a Certificate 
to Plat to determine status of title by a title company.  The Certificate to Plat will also be 
used for the platting requirements, if applicable. 

8.6 The applicant will prepare a Farm Conservation Plan that identifies the new divided or 
subdivided parcels for the review and consideration of the MSB Agriculture Advisory for 
the borough manager’s approval.  Staff will prepare a Manager’s Decision that includes 
recommendations, if any. 

8.7 Upon notice from the MSB Platting Division for recording the subdivision plat, staff will 
prepare the Notice of Approval to Divide the Farm Unit, execute a Certificate of 
Ownership, and provide the MSB Platting Division with the documents and instructions 
for recording with the subdivision plat.  

8.8 All costs to process the request, including but not limited to, those costs for Certificate to 
Plat, public notice, advertising and mailing fees, recording fees, survey, platting, 
encroachment permits or variances, will be paid by the applicant. 

9.1 Non-agricultural businesses (agricultural rights only). 

 As currently written (Ord 93-143):  With the approval of the Agricultural and Forestry 
Advisory Board, specific non-agricultural businesses may be conducted on the homesite 
only.  The specific business shall be owned and operated by the immediate parcel owner.  
With the approval of the Agricultural and Forestry Advisory Board at a request by the 
owner, a person may operate a business on the homesite processing or selling wood or 
agricultural products that come from areas other than the parcel.  The business may not 
be on Class III or IV soils unless located on the homesite.  The Agricultural and Forestry 
Advisory Board may not approve a business under this section unless the parcel is in 
compliance with its approved development schedule or is in full production. 

 Recommend language:  Non-agricultural businesses may be conducted on the homesite 
only.  No formal procedure administratively or legislatively is required.   



TITLE 23 

LAND AND RESOURCE MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL 

 

AGRICULTURAL LAND SALES – FORMER MSB TITLE 13:   
1977, 1981, 1982, AND 1983 LAND SALES PROGRAMS 

PART 5 (DRAFT) 

 

5-17 
Land & Resource Management Policy & Procedures (PPM) DRAFT  Effective: XX/XX/20XX 
The code authority cited is specific to this policy and procedure.   
Other provisions of code may also apply.  

 

 Furthermore, I would like to recommend the board consider other types of agricultural 
uses for the farm units, such as agritourism and farm tours.    

10.1 Homesites and outbuildings. 

 As currently written (Ord 86-78):  A request to place more than one dwelling per homesite 
must be submitted in writing and be reviewed Agricultural and Forestry Advisory Board 
and approved by the borough manager prior to construction.  The request must include 
justification showing that the additional dwelling or larger site relates to the operation of 
the farm.  The same procedure must be followed for requests and approval to construct 
outbuildings (non-residential structures required for agricultural purposes) on land other 
than the homesite.  The request must include financial or practical justification for not 
placing the structures on the homesite. 

Recommended language: 

10.1 Homesite dwelling(s) for agricultural rights only. 

A request to place more than one dwelling on the homesite must be submitted in writing 
and reviewed by the Agriculture Advisory Board and approved by the borough manager 
prior to construction.  The request must include justification showing that the additional 
dwelling or larger site relates to the operation of the farm unit or sub-farm unit. 

10.2  Outbuilding(s) . 

A request to place outbuildings outside of the homesite must be submitted in writing 
and reviewed by the Agriculture Advisory Board and approved by the borough manager 
prior to construction.  The request must included justification showing that the 
outbuilding(s) relates to the operation of the farm unit or sub-farm unit. 

11.1 Leasing a farm unit or sub-farm unit. 

Leasing a farm unit or sub-farm unit is allowed only for agricultural purposes, use, and 
sales of products produced on the farm.  No formal procedures administratively or 
legislatively is required.   

12.1 Granting or dedicating easements. 



TITLE 23 

LAND AND RESOURCE MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL 

 

AGRICULTURAL LAND SALES – FORMER MSB TITLE 13:   
1977, 1981, 1982, AND 1983 LAND SALES PROGRAMS 

PART 5 (DRAFT) 

 

5-18 
Land & Resource Management Policy & Procedures (PPM) DRAFT  Effective: XX/XX/20XX 
The code authority cited is specific to this policy and procedure.   
Other provisions of code may also apply.  

 

A. Utility easements for services.   

1. A single line utility service to the farm unit or sub-farm unit is allowed 
without borough consent.  The costs associated with installation of utility 
lines are the sole responsibility of the owner. 

2. A utility transmission/distribution line across a farm unit or sub-farm unit 
is not allowed without borough administrative review and approval.  
Dependent upon the utility provider’s request, assembly approval may be 
required.   

 B. Eminent Domain, Condemnation. 

1. The Borough retained the development rights of each farm unit or sub-
farm unit.  Therefore, the Borough has a compensable property interest of 
the retained rights.  Granting or dedicating a public right of way to an 
agency with Eminent Domain Authority requires MSB Assembly approval.      

13.1 Farm Development Plan, Schedule, and Extensions. 

 After the December 11th meeting, the February 2020 packet was prepared the for 
discussion of assembly approval to terminate the requirement of a Farm Development Plan.  
The February meeting was cancelled due to the pandemic.   This item is on the September 15th 
meeting agenda. 

14.1 Conveyance and subdivision by probate, trust, or civil actions. 

 From time to time, Land and Resource Management receives legal court documents as a 

process to convey and/or subdivide a farm unit or sub-farm unit to satisfy probate or a 

civil action.  Each request requires careful consideration to preserve the intention of the 

agricultural potential to all farms in the agricultural land sale programs.   

1977 and 1981 Ag sale:  Typically, MSB Assessment Division provides staff with a recorded 

deed when a Notice to Convey the Farm Unit is not recorded.  When transfer of title is 

conveyed by probate or a trust, it is impossible to perform a financial review on the new 

owner once title has passed.  Upon notice of title transfer, staff will send a letter to the 



TITLE 23 

LAND AND RESOURCE MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL 

 

AGRICULTURAL LAND SALES – FORMER MSB TITLE 13:   
1977, 1981, 1982, AND 1983 LAND SALES PROGRAMS 

PART 5 (DRAFT) 

 

5-19 
Land & Resource Management Policy & Procedures (PPM) DRAFT  Effective: XX/XX/20XX 
The code authority cited is specific to this policy and procedure.   
Other provisions of code may also apply.  

 

new owner outlining the process to record a Notice of Approval to Further Convey the 

Farm Unit. 

Partnerships and the splitting of assets are, at times decided in court.  Those court 

decisions/settlements can play a significant role in the disposition of a farm unit or sub-

farm unit according to MSB code, legislation, policies, and recorded covenants, 

conditions, and restriction.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



TITLE 23 

LAND AND RESOURCE MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL 

 

AGRICULTURAL LAND SALES – FORMER MSB TITLE 13:   
1977, 1981, 1982, AND 1983 LAND SALES PROGRAMS 

PART 5 (DRAFT) 

 

5-20 
Land & Resource Management Policy & Procedures (PPM) DRAFT  Effective: XX/XX/20XX 
The code authority cited is specific to this policy and procedure.   
Other provisions of code may also apply.  

 

REVIEW PROCESS 
SUB-PART NUMBER AND TITLE 

 
ASSEMBLY 

ACTION 

 
AAB APPROVAL 

 
MANAGER 
APPROVAL 

6.1: Conveyance of the farm unit or 
sub-farm unit for the 1977 and 1981 
Agricultural Land Sale programs. 

   
X 

7.1: Subdivision and sale of the fee 
simple title of the five-acre homesite. 

X X 
& Planning 

Commission for 
the land 

classification 

 

7.10     Designation of additional 
homesites after subdivision 

  
X 

 
X 

8.1: Subdivision of the farm or sub-
farm unit. 

 
 

 
X 

 
X 

8.6:      Farm Conservation Plan new 
parcels after subdivision 

  
X 

 
X 

9.1: Non-agricultural businesses  
N/A 

 
N/A 

 
N/A 

10.1: Homesites and outbuildings   
X 

 
X 

11.1: Leasing a farm unit or sub-farm 
unit 

 
N/A 

 
N/A 

 
N/A 

12.1: Granting or dedicating easements    

  A.1.  Single line utility  
N/A 

 
N/A 

 
N/A 

  A.2.  Utility transmission/distribution 
line 

  X 
Administrative 

Review/Assembly 
approval may be 

required 

  B.1.  Right of way (public)  
X 

 
X 

 

13.1: Farm Development Plan, 
schedule, and extensions. 

   

14.1: Conveyance and subdivision by 
probate, trust, or civil actions. 

   

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MSB 

Oridnance Serial No. 86-78 























 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MSB 

Oridnance Serial No. 93-143 











 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MSB 

Oridnance Serial No. 95-151 















DRAFT AG RELEASE LEGISLATION       Page 1 of 2 

FARM PLAN REQUIREMENTS  

 

DRAFT AG RELEASE LEGISLATION 

FARM PLAN REQUIREMENTS 
 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The Land Management Division has received another written request 

from a borough agricultural rights owner who is asking to be relieved 

from the requirement that a current approved farm use plan be on 

file with the borough.  The borough assembly has previously 

authorized release from the farm use plan filing requirements for 

several farms, which completed the farm development requirements 

and paid off the borough contract. 

 

Release of the farm use plan filing requirement does not change the 

ownership interest from agricultural rights only.   It also does 

not alter any other limitations under the covenants, conditions and 

restrictions or deed that were imposed to ensure the use of the 

property be for agricultural purposes. 

 

On May 3, 1995, the Agricultural and Forestry Advisory Board (AFAB) 

passed a motion to "recommend to the assembly that when a landholder 

of any agricultural parcel has completed the farm plan requirement, 

the financial obligation to the borough has been met and is given a 

quitclaim deed, etc.,” that the landholder "not be required to file 

a farm plan with the borough."  The vote on the motion passed 

unanimously. 

 

Subsequent to the recommendation of both the AFAB and 

administration, the assembly approved the release of three (3) 

parcels owned by two (2) individuals who had requested the releases. 

However, a change to the overall procedure was not presented based 

on the AFAB recommendation.  In addition, the assembly released 

another owner from the requirements in the late 1980's.  

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

At this time of the 50 agricultural parcels sold in 1977, 1981, 1982 

and 1983, 29 landholders have met the requirements of the farm plan 

development and paid the contracts off.  Four (4) of the 29 have 

been previously released from the farm use plan filing requirement 

by individual request and action of the assembly.  

 

Because the requirement was originally implemented by declaration 

of covenants or deed restrictions (depending on the year of the 

sale), when a release is authorized it must be implemented as a 

"release" of the clause in the specific document of record which 

contained the requirement. For this reason, it is necessary to 



DRAFT AG RELEASE LEGISLATION       Page 2 of 2 

FARM PLAN REQUIREMENTS  

 

process releases and collect the recording fees on an individual 

basis.  However, it would expedite the requests if processed 

administratively based on meeting all of the following requirements. 

 

 *  The borough agricultural parcel must have been sold in    

    either the 1977, 1981, 1982, or 1983 programs. 

 

 *  The development under the approved farm use plan must have 

    been completed as required by the sale program. 

 

*  The borough contract to purchase the agricultural rights     

is paid in full. 

 

 *  All taxes and assessments for the agricultural parcel are 

    are current. 

 



Matanuska-Susitna Borough 
 
 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO:  Agriculture Advisory Board Members 
 
THROUGH: Eric Phillips, Community Development Director  
 
FROM:  Tracy K. McDaniel, Asset Manager   
 
DATE:  September 2, 2021 for the September 15, 2021 meeting 
 
RE:  Staff Report updated from the February 4, 2020, board packet 

Agricultural Land Sales 1977, 1981, 1982, and 1983 
  Farm Use Development Plan/Farm Use Plan 

 

The following paper is updated from the February 2020 board packet, wherein the meeting was 

cancelled due to the pandemic.  

 

At the December 2019 board meeting, during the review of the proposed policy and procedures 

for the former Title 13 agricultural land sale programs, staff discussed the farm use development 

plan (FDP) requirement that impacts each parcel.  In order to finalize the draft policy and 

procedure, the farm use development plan should be addressed as implemented by the 

declaration of covenants or deed restrictions (depending on the year of the sale) since it is a 

“mandatory” requirement.   

 

HISTORICAL BACKGROUND:   

On May 16, 1995, the Agricultural and Forestry Advisory Board passed a motion unanimously, 

“to recommend to the assembly that when a landholder of any agricultural parcel has completed 

the farm plan requirement, and the financial obligation to the borough has been met and is given 

a quitclaim deed, etc., that they will not be required to file a farm plan with the borough.”  

However, assembly legislation was never presented to change to the overall procedure for the 

four agricultural programs.  The intent was to preserve the agricultural lands and allow the farmer 

to benefit from the “flexibility and latitude to deviate and explore other agricultural applications 

and techniques without having to first seek borough approval.”   



Tracy K. McDaniel, SR/WA, Asset Manager 
Community Development Department ǀ Land and Resource Management Division 

350 E. Dahlia Avenue, Palmer, Alaska 99645 
907.861.7864 Direct 

Past practice required the owner to request a release from a Farm Use Plan or Farm Use 

Development Plan (used interchangeably throughout the years) requirement.  The Agricultural 

and Forestry Advisory Board would review the request and make recommendations to the 

assembly.  If approved by an assembly ordinance, a notice was recorded in the appropriate 

recording district.  Very few owners made the request to be released from the requirement.   

 

Originally, 50 farm units were offered for sale in the four agricultural land sale programs under 

former Title 13.  With subsequent subdivisions over the years, there are now 73 legal tracts of 

record (farm units and sub-farm units) according to MSB assessment records, for an estimated 

46 owners.  During my review of the various agricultural sales programs and individual files from 

the 1977, 1981, 1982, and 1983 agricultural land sale programs, it appears that most of the 

original owners completed the FDP requirements, but never requested a release.  Furthermore, 

all borough contracts for the agricultural sale programs are paid and the borough conveyed 

quitclaim deeds. 

 

At this point in time, and due to the age of the agricultural land sale programs, it would be costly 

and time consuming for a staff of one to inspect each farm unit/sub-farm unit and enforce a FDP 

that the borough has not manage since the mid 1990’s.  Staff consulted with the attorney’s office 

for a type of instrument that was all encompassing to release the requirement of a FDP on each 

parcel.  It was determined that it would need to be a recorded document for each individual 

parcel owner, as it was done in the past when an owner requested to be released from the FDP.   

 

Therefore, I recommend the following: 

1. Write a letter to each owner explaining the issue and get their feedback to find out if 
there is an interest to release the FDP requirement for a nominal fee in order to cover the 
recording fees (draft attached). 

2. If a majority of the owners shows an interest, pursue legislation from the Agriculture 
Advisory Board to the assembly recommending approval to release the FDP requirements 
and waive the application fee. 

Attached is a draft form for the Notice of Release from the Farm Development Plan that 

illustrates the type of instrument for recording. 

Motion for the board to entertain:  I move that staff send the current owners of the former Title 

13 agricultural land sales a letter to see if there is an interest of a majority of the owner to release 

the farm use development plan requirement for a nominal recording fee. 

 

Respectfully, Tracy   



2020/02/04 DRAFT 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 

[MONTH DAY], 2021 

 

[NAME(S)] 

[ADDRESS] 

[CITY, STATE, ZIP] 

 

 Re: Borough Agricultural Rights Land Sales 1977, 1981, 1982 & 1983 

  Farm Use Development Plan requirement  

 

Dear [MR./MRS. LAST NAME]: 

 

You are receiving this letter as [an owner/owners] of an agricultural rights deed issued by the 

Matanuska-Susitna Borough (MSB) in either the 1977, 1981, 1982 or 1983 agricultural land sale 

program.   

 

Through research of various agricultural sale files, minutes, and legislation, it was determined that 

a majority of owners never requested a release from their farm use development plan requirement.  

The farm use development plan requirement was implemented by declaration of covenants or deed 

restrictions, depending on the year of the land sale, as a “mandatory” requirement which could be 

released at the owner(s) request to the MSB Assembly.   

 

As the landowner of an agricultural rights parcel, the MSB is inquiring if you would be interested 

in the MSB releasing this requirement at a cost of $35 to $45 for recording a Notice to Release the 

Farm Use Plan Requirement.  If you are interested in participating in this process, please contact 

me at the phone number or email below by [MONTH DAY], 2020.  Upon confirmation that a 

majority of owners show an interest in removing the requirement, I will prepare legislation for the 

MSB Assembly’s approval to release the requirement by a recorded document and request that no 

application fee is required, only a recording fee from the owner as noted above. 

 

Please feel free to contact me with any questions. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Tracy K. McDaniel, SR/WA | Asset Manager 

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 

Community Development Department 
Land & Resource Management Division 

350 E. Dahlia Avenue, Palmer, Alaska 99645 

907.861.7864 (direct) | tracy.mcdaniel@matsugov.us (email) 

MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH 
Community Development Department 

350 East Dahlia Avenue  Palmer, AK  99645 

Phone (907) 861-7869  Fax (907) 861-8635  

E-mail: lmb@matsugov.us 

www.matsugov.us 

 

mailto:tracy.mcdaniel@matsugov.us
http://www.matsugov.us/


DRAFT 

NOTICE OF RELEASE FROM THE  

FARM USE/DEVELOPMENT PLAN REQUIREMENT 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH, a municipal 

corporation, whose address is 350 E. Dahlia Avenue, Palmer, Alaska 99645, does hereby release 

[NAME(S)] whose address of record is [ADDRESS], including their successors and assigns, from the 

condition that their agricultural parcel shall be utilized in accordance with the farm use development 

plan/farm use plan, for the following described real property: 

[INSERT LEGAL DESCRIPTION] 

As set out by the Grantor, the Matanuska-Susitna Borough, in that certain Quitclaim Deed recorded on 

[DATE RECORDED], at Book [XX] and Page [XX], conveyed all agricultural rights in and to the 

surface of the property described herein, under the condition that the agricultural rights shall be utilized 

in accordance with the Grantee’s farm use development plan/farm use plan. 

As set out by Matanuska-Susitna Borough Assembly Ordinance Serial No. 2020-XXX, which allows 

the manger to release the Grantee/Grantee’s, their successors and assigns, from the farm use 

development plan/farm use plan requirement on the above described lands. 

THEREFORE, the Matanuska-Susitna Borough Manager does hereby release [NAME] from the 

requirement to utilize their agricultural parcel in accordance with the farm use development plan/farm 

use plan. 

RELEASE from the farm use development plan/farm use plan does not release the Grantee/Grantee’s 

from the Covenants, Conditions, and Restriction separately recorded nor from the requirement that the 

use of the property be for agricultural purposes and for maximizing the agricultural potential of the 

property and all other reservations, easements, covenants, conditions, restrictions, plat notes, and 

exceptions of record. 

DATED this   , day of     , 20XX. 

GRANTOR: 

Matnauska-Susitna Borough 

 

       

John Moosey, Manager 

 

STATE OF ALASKA ) 

   ) ss. 

Third Judicial District ) 

 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this      , day of    , 

20XX, by JOHN MOOSEY, manager of the Matanuska-Susitna Borough, a municipal corporation 

organized and existing under the laws of the state of Alaska, on behalf of the corporation. 

 

[NOTARY SEAL]     

 

                                                

      Notary Public for State of Alaska 

My commission expires:                  

 

 
RETURN TO: 

MSB/L&RMD 

350 E. Dahlia Avenue 

Palmer, Alaska 99645 


	units and the Alaska Department of Natural Resource performed the 1981 sale on behalf of the: 
	December 11 2019 updated September 2 2021  AAB Memo: 
	Page 2 of 3: 
	December 11 2019 updated September 2 2021  AAB Memo_2: 
	Page 3 of 3: 


